 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

GEORGE BARISICH, individually and on behalf of THE UNITED COMMERCIAL FISHERMAN’S ASSOCIATION, INC.

Plaintiff

Versus

BP, P.L.C., BP EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION INC., and PB AMERICA PRODUCTION COMPANY


Defendants


Magistrate:

Civil Action Number:
Section:
Jury Demand
VERIFIED COMPLAINT FOR

DECLARATORY JUDGMENT AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
           NOW INTO COURT, through undersigned counsel, comes Plaintiff, George Barisich, individually and on behalf of the United Commercial Fisherman’s Association, Inc. as President thereof, whose Complaint for Declaratory Judgment and Injunctive Relief respectfully avers as follows:

Parties
1.

            Plaintiff appearing herein is George Barisich, individually and on behalf of the United Commercial Fisherman’s Association, Inc. as President thereof.  Mr. Barisich is a natural person of the full age of majority domiciled in, and a citizen of, the State of Louisiana, Parish of St. Bernard.

2.

            Made defendants herein are:

a)
BP, p.l.c., a foreign corporation doing business in the State of Louisiana and within this district;

b)
BP Exploration & Production Inc., a foreign corporation doing business in the State of Louisiana and within this district; and

c)
BP American Production Company, a foreign corporation doing business in the State of Louisiana and within this district.

Jurisdiction and Venue
3.

            This Honorable Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to federal admiralty and maritime jurisdiction and pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332 in that this is a civil action between citizens of different domiciles where the amount in controversy exceeds the sum of $75,000.00, exclusive of interest and costs.

4.

           Venue is proper in this District as it is where the conduct complained of herein occurred.

Factual Allegations
5.

            The DEEPWATER HORIZON was a floating oil rig operated by defendants BP, plc, BP Exploration and Production Inc. and/or BP American Production Company (collectively “BP”) approximately 50 miles southeast of Venice, Louisiana in the Gulf of Mexico. At approximately 10 p.m. on April 20, 2010, while the vessel, DEEPWATER HORIZON, was performing drilling operations for crude oil off the coast of Louisiana at its Macondo Prospect, an apparent “blow-out” of the well occurred and a fiery explosion of the rig resulted.  Some crewmembers were thrown overboard and it is believed that at least 11 crewmembers aboard the vessel were killed.  The explosion and subsequent fire caused such significant damage to the floating rig structure that it sank in approximately 5,000 feet of water.

6.


With the failure of the well’s casing and the concurrent failure of the blow-out preventor mechanism (the “BOP”), the well began to release, leak and/or discharge oil directly into the Gulf of Mexico. The well continues to release, leak and/or discharge at least 210,000 gallons of oil into the Gulf of Mexico on a daily basis, and the plume has expanded to more than 4,000 square miles.

7.

            The oil that is being released is an extremely hazardous and/or toxic substance which poses a significant risk to the wetlands and marine life in the Louisiana Coastal Zone. A large and expanding mass of oil continues to spread to the Louisiana coastline every day and threatens the nation’s largest remaining wetland areas and vulnerable habitat of fish, oysters, crabs, shrimp, birds and other precious wildlife.

8.

            In an effort to protect the wetlands and estuaries, the very cradle of their livelihoods and way of life, fishermen in Louisiana have volunteered to assist BP and government agencies in deploying boom material and in other associated clean-up operations. Plaintiff, and the many, many members of the United Commercial Fisherman’s Association, Inc. which he represents as President, are among the ever-growing number of brave Louisiana citizens who have volunteered in those efforts.

9.

            Before allowing Plaintiff to assist in those efforts, however, BP unilaterally drafted and demanded that Plaintiff sign the Master Vessel Charter Agreement (the “Agreement”) attached hereto as Exhibit A.  That Agreement contains several provisions that could severely limit Plaintiff’s  ability to fully and vigorously pursue any claims he may have against BP and its affiliated entities.  Upon information and belief, the unilateral Agreement is proposed by BP to be used by all volunteers who assist in BP’s mandatory clean-up obligations – again, many of whom are members of the United Commercial Fisherman’s Association, Inc. of which Plaintiff George Barisich is President.  To be clear, execution of the Agreement is being demanded of the very volunteers whose livelihoods BP has put in unprecedented jeopardy. 

10.


Article 13(I)(1) of the Agreement provides that “if VESSEL OWNER has a claim against CHARTERER [defined in the Agreement as BP American Production Company] or has Notice of any claim(s) for which CHARTERER is or could be accountable . . . VESSEL OWNER will provide full written Notice to CHARTERER within thirty (30) days of the date VESSEL OWNER learns of the claim.”

11.


Presumably, without the 30 days’ notice required by Article 13(I) of the Agreement, any claims against BP American Production Company – even those arising out of the catastrophic environmental disaster now facing Louisiana and fisherman like Plaintiff and those members of the United Commercial Fisherman’s Association, Inc. – are released.  Thus, that provision effectively reduces to one month the prescriptive period applicable to the incalculable number and type of claims that will continue to grow out of that environmental disaster in violation of Louisiana Civil Code article 3471.

12.


Article 13(F) of the Agreement further provides that “VESSEL OWNER will defend, indemnify and hold CHARTERER and its respective agents and employees harmless from all claims, losses, actions, liabilities, and expenses for, or related to, any loss of or damage to any property or any injury to or death of any person in connection with or relating in any way to VESSEL OWNER’S performance under the CHARTER or SERVICES provided to the extent attributable to any willful misconduct, gross negligence or negligence by VESSEL OWNER or its crew in the operation of the VESSEL during the CHARTER of the VESSEL.”

13.


Thus, Article 13(F), forces the signatory – again, the fisherman – to give up claims that have yet to even arise and holds those fishermen to the standard of oil-spill remediation experts with respect to BP when, in fact, they are layman – and victims – volunteering to remediate a crisis BP itself created.

14.


The Agreement also attaches a Confidentiality Agreement, which requires the vessel owner to keep confidential and not disclose “data” without BP’s consent, and includes within the definition of “data” any documents or information “conceived, made, developed or disclosed … by the undersigned [VESSEL OWNERS].”  

15.


Also, Article 22 of the Agreement provides that “VESSEL OWNER will not make releases, marketing presentation, or any other public statements this CHARTER, CHARTERER, or the SERVICES performed under this CHARTER without CHARTERER’S prior written approval” and “that such approval is at the sole discretion of CHARTERER.”

16.


Thus, not only is Article 22 in complete contravention of Plaintiff’s free speech rights, should Plaintiff discover any information regarding the oil discharge while engaged in clean-up activities, he may be precluded under the Confidentiality Agreement from disclosing that information or using it in his claims against BP or its affiliates and he may be precluded under Article 22 from sharing that information with the general public, including other victims in this disaster.

17.


In addition to the foregoing provisions, Article 13(A) of the Agreement mandates that “VESSEL OWNER confirm[] that it will maintain in place any insurance policies it is carrying as of the date immediately prior to entering into this CHARTER or that it routinely carries for its usual operations and to the extent it has such coverage, it will either specifically name or shall be deemed to have specifically named CHARTERER as an additional assured.”

18.


Thus, Article 13(A) operates to further insulate BP from what may very well be additional losses and injuries arising out of the clean-up operations – operations which BP is obligated to undertake.

19.


By insisting that Plaintiff execute the Agreement before allowing him to assist in clean-up efforts, BP presented Plaintiff – and likely many others – with the untenable choice of either walking away from the collective efforts to protect his livelihood or limiting – and even signing away – rights to pursue even as of yet unknown remedies for the destruction of his livelihood. 

20.

           Plaintiff is subject to immediate and irreparable injury if he either (1) chooses not to sign the Agreement and therefore not to participate in the cleanup activities and loses his livelihood as a result, or (2) chooses to participate in the cleanup activities to attempt to protect the source of his livelihood but as a consequence of signing the Agreement limits or loses his right to seek remedy for damages caused by BP.  That same untenable choice faces every member of the United Commercial Fisherman’s Association, Inc. to whom BP has also demanded execute the Agreement.

21.


To the extent the Agreement results in the signing party’s loss of all or part of claims for past injuries due to conduct of BP, it is impermissibly broad and overreaching, is not supported by adequate consideration, and is contrary to public policy; and to the extent that the Agreement requires the signing party to give up all or part of claims for future injuries, it is not supported by adequate consideration and is contrary to public policy.  See La. C.C. art. 3078.  Requiring the volunteer responders, already victims of the oil spill disaster caused by BP, to potentially lose or in any way limit their claims against BP, including claims for potential injury caused by efforts to clean up the catastrophic discharge, is unconscionable.

           WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, George Barisich, individually and on behalf of the United Commercial Fisherman’s Association, Inc. as President thereof, asks for judgment (1) enjoining BP from requiring that he and any and all others sign the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A before assisting in clean-up efforts and (2) either declaring that the Agreement is unconscionable and that any such Agreements already executed are therefore null and void and/or enjoining BP from seeking 

to enforce any such Agreements already executed.

Dated: May 2, 2010






Respectfully submitted,






________________________________________






JAMES M. GARNER (# 19589)






TIMOTHY B. FRANCIS (# 14973)






JOSHUA S. FORCE (# 21975)






SHARONDA R. WILLIAMS (# 28809)






EMMA ELIZABETH ANTIN DASCHBACH (#27358)





Sher Garner Cahill Richter Klein & Hilbert, L.L.C. 






909 Poydras Street, 28th Floor






New Orleans, Louisiana  70112-1033






Telephone: 
(504) 299-2100






Facsimile:  
(504) 299-2300





GLADSTONE N. JONES, III (# 22221)






EBERHARD D. GARRISON (# 22058)





KEVIN E. HUDDELL (# 26930)






H.S. BARTLETT III (# 26795)





JACQUELINE A. STUMP (# 31981)





Jones, Swanson, Huddell & Garrison, L.L.C.





Pan-American Life Center





601 Poydras Street, Suite 2655





New Orleans, LA 70130





Telephone: 
(504) 523-2500





Facsimile: 
(504) 523-2508





STUART H. SMITH # 17805





MICHAEL G. STAG





Smith Stagg, L.L.C.




365 Canal Street, Suite 2850





New Orleans, LA 70130





(504) 593-9600





(504) 593-9601






VAL PATRICK EXNICIOS, ESQ.





Liska, Exnicios & Nungesser






One Canal Place 22nd Floor





365 Canal Street, Ste. 2290





New Orleans, LA.  70130





Telephone:  
(504) 410-9611





Facsimile:
(504) 410-9937
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BP, P.L.C. and BP EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION INC.


Defendants


Magistrate:

Civil Action Number:
Section:
Jury Demand
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PRELIMINARY AND PERMANENT INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
            Plaintiff, George Barisich, individually and on behalf of the United Commercial Fisherman’s Association, Inc. as President thereof (hereinafter, “Plaintiff”), being sworn, deposes and says:

1.

            Plaintiff is of legal age and is competent to testify to the facts set forth in this declaration.

2.

            Plaintiff has read the foregoing Complaint and knows the contents thereof.

3.

            The facts contained within the foregoing Complaint are within the personal knowledge of Plaintiff, and Plaintiff hereby states under penalty of perjury that the allegations of facts contained therein are true and correct to the best of his personal knowledge, information, and belief.


Executed in New Orleans, Louisiana on this 2nd day of May, 2010.

                                                                       _________________________________________







GEORGE BARISICH
Individually and on behalf of the United Commercial Fisherman’s Association, Inc. and as President thereof
